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State of Missouri

MISSOURI HIGHWAYS AND
)
TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION,
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)
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)




)


vs.

)

No.  05-1790 MC



)

SPIGHT CONTRACTING COMPANY,
)




)



Respondent.
)

DECISION


Spight Contracting Company (“Spight”) violated Regulation 49 CFR § 382.115(a) by authorizing its employee, James McKay, to operate its truck number 878 on April 13, 2005, without Spight having implemented an alcohol and/or controlled substances testing program for its drivers.


Spight violated Regulation 49 CFR § 396.11(a) by failing to require drivers Ray Spight and James McKay to prepare driver vehicle inspection reports for Ray Spight’s trip on March 29, 2005, and James McKay’s trip on April 12, 2005.  A violation of 49 CFR § 396.11(a) constitutes a violation of Regulation 11 CSR 30-6.010(1) and thereby a violation of § 307.400.
  


Spight violated Regulation 49 CFR § 396.17 by authorizing Ray Spight to drive Truck 880 on March 29, 2005, without having had it inspected and by authorizing James McKay to drive Truck 878 on April 12, 2005, without having had it inspected.  A violation of 49 CFR 
§ 396.17 constitutes a violation of Regulation 11 CSR 30-6.010(1) and thereby a violation of 
§ 307.400.
Procedure


On December 19, 2005, the Missouri Highways and Transportation Commission (“the MHTC”) filed a Complaint against Spight.  We served Spight with a copy of the complaint and our notice of complaint/notice of hearing by certified mail on December 21, 2005.  We held our hearing on May 3, 2006.  Kim Burton appeared on behalf of the MHTC.  No one appeared on behalf of Spight.  We allowed the record to remain open for the MHTC to file Petitioner’s Exhibit P, which we received on June 26, 2006.  We admit Petitioner’s Exhibit P.  Spight’s brief was due on July 26, 2006.
Findings of Fact


1.
Spight is a Missouri corporation located at 7101 North Market, St. Louis, Missouri.  Its registered agent is Marnita Spight.

2.
Spight uses trucks to move property, such as heavy equipment, and excavated materials, such as gravel, for compensation within Missouri.


3.
Spight employed drivers James McKay and Ray “Tony” Spight to operate its trucks.  

4.
McKay used for hauling a Mack truck, VIN IM2P267C2YM049017, with a gross vehicle weight rating of 72,000 pounds.  Its equipment number was 878 (“Truck 878”).
5.
McKay used for hauling a Mack truck, VIN 1M2B209C7NM009872, with a gross vehicle weight rating of 72,000 pounds.  Its equipment number was 880 (“Truck 880”).


6.
On March 29, 2005, Spight authorized Ray Spight to use Truck 880 to haul property for Clark Wrecking Company to a Telegraph River Road location.  Ray Spight hauled property on that date:

a)
without Spight requiring Ray Spight to prepare a driver vehicle inspection report for Truck 880 and

b)
with Spight allowing Truck 880 to be operated without having been periodically inspected.

7.
Spight billed Clark Wrecking Company for the hauling that Ray Spight did on March 29, 2005.

8.
On April 12, 2005, Spight authorized James McKay to use Truck 878 to haul river rock for Clark Wrecking Company to a Telegraph River Road location.  James McKay hauled property on that date:
a)
without Spight requiring James McKay to prepare a driver vehicle inspection report for Truck 878 and

b)
with Spight allowing Truck 878 to be operated without having been periodically inspected.

9.
Spight billed Clark Wrecking Company for the hauling that James McKay did on April 12, 2005.

10.
On April 13, 2005, Spight authorized James McKay to use Truck 878 to haul property for Clark Wrecking Company to a Telegraph River Road location.  James McKay hauled property on that date without Spight having an alcohol or controlled substances testing program in place.  
Conclusions of Law

Jurisdiction
The MHTC’s complaint alleges that Spight is a motor carrier, or commercial motor carrier under federal law, that violated safety regulations in Parts 382 and 396 of Title 49 of the Code of Federal Regulations (“CFR”).  
Historical Background

Originally, the Public Service Commission had the authority to license, supervise and regulate motor carriers in Missouri
 and to hold hearings on complaints to enforce those regulatory laws.
  In 1985, the General Assembly split the regulatory and quasi-adjudicatory functions regarding transportation activities.  Section 622.010
 created the Division of Transportation within the Department of Economic Development.  Section 622.015
  transferred to the Division of Transportation the Public Service Commission’s authority to regulate transportation activities within Missouri. Section 622.020.1
 provided for the appointment of three administrative law judges to serve within the Division of Transportation.  Section 622.030.1
 placed in the administrative law judges the power to “hear and decide all matters concerning transportation activities which the public service commission or public service commissioners would have been required to hear and decide in a quasi-judicial capacity.”  
Effective July 1, 1997, §§ 622.010 and 622.100(3)
 renamed the Division of Transportation as the Division of Motor Carrier and Railroad Safety.  Section 622.320.1
 
authorized the Division of Motor Carrier and Railroad Safety to file complaints to establish violations of transportation laws by carriers.  No change was made in the authority of the administrative law judges to hold hearings on the complaints.  
In 2002, § 226.008.5 abolished the Division of Motor Carrier and Railroad Safety.  Section 226.008.1 and .2(1) placed that Division’s transportation regulatory powers in the MHTC.  Sections 226.008.4 and 621.040 transferred the administrative law judges’ quasi-judicial powers to the Administrative Hearing Commission.  Section 226.008 provides:


4.  All the powers, duties and functions, including all rules and orders, of the administrative law judges of the division of motor carrier and railroad safety, as amended by the provisions of this section and sections 104.805, 389.005, 389.610, and 621.040, RSMo, are hereby transferred to the administrative hearing commission within the state office of administration.
Section 621.040 grants us the:

jurisdiction to conduct hearings, make findings of fact and conclusions of law, and issue orders in all applicable cases relating to motor carrier and railroad regulation transferred to the highways and transportation commission pursuant to this section and sections 104.805, 226.008, 389.005, and 389.610, RSMo[.]
The only statute
 enumerated in §§ 226.008.4 and 621.040 that applies to commercial motor carriers is § 226.008, which provides:  

1.  The highways and transportation commission shall have responsibility and authority, as provided in this section and sections 104.805, 389.005, 389.610, and 621.040, RSMo, for the administration and enforcement of:

(1) Licensing, supervising and regulating motor carriers for the transportation of passengers, household goods and other property by motor vehicles within this state;
*   *   *


2.  The highways and transportation commission shall carry out all powers, duties and functions relating to intrastate and interstate transportation previously performed by:


(1) The division of motor carrier and railroad safety within the department of economic development, and all officers or employees of that division[.]

(Emphasis added.)  

Section 622.090
 set forth the “powers, duties and functions” formerly within the Division of Motor Carrier and Railroad Safety: 
The jurisdiction, supervision, powers and duties of the transportation division herein created and established shall extend under this chapter:

*   *   *


(5) To all motor carriers, railroad corporations, and street railroad corporations operating or doing business within this state;


(6) To all persons, corporations or partnerships engaged in the transportation of property or freight within the state; and 


(7) To all corporations and persons whatsoever subject to the provisions of chapters 387, 388, 389, 390, and 391, RSMo, and this chapter.

(Emphasis added.)

Section 622.320.1
  authorized the Division to file complaints “setting forth any act or thing done or omitted to be done by any carrier, corporation or person, including any rule, regulation or charge established or fixed by or for any carrier, corporation or person in violation, or claimed to be in violation, of any provision of law, or of any rule or order or decision of the division.” 

State Law Violations:  Section 622.090(5) and (6)
as Made Applicable by § 226.008.1(1) and .2(1)

The MHTC alleges that Spight is a corporation that operated or authorized the operation of a motor vehicle by its employee with a gross or combination weight rating of 26,001 lbs or more on the public highway to transport property.  This is sufficient to allege that Spight is a “motor carrier.”  Section 390.020(18) defines “motor carrier” as:

any person engaged in the transportation of property or passengers, or both, for compensation or hire, over the public roads of this state by motor vehicle.  The term includes both common and contract carriers[.]

Section 390.020(7) defines contract carrier as:

any person under individual contracts or agreements which engage in transportation by motor vehicles of passenger or property for hire or compensation upon the public highways[.]

Section 390.020(19) defines motor vehicle as:

any vehicle, truck, truck-tractor, trailer, or semitrailer, motor bus or any self-propelled vehicle used upon the highways of the state in the transportation of property or passengers[.]
Section 226.008.1(1) and .2(1) give the MHTC jurisdiction to regulate motor carriers and file complaints against them.  Section 621.040 and § 226.008.4 give us jurisdiction to hear the MHTC’s complaints about motor carriers.  
Federal Law Violations:  Section 622.090(7)
as Made Applicable by § 226.008.1(1) and .2(1)

The MHTC alleges that Spight authorized its employees to operate commercial motor vehicles in violation of federal regulations found at 49 CFR §§ 382.115 (a), 396.11(a), and 396.17. 


The MHTC has the authority to enforce Parts 100 through 199 and Parts 350 through 399 of Title 49 of the Code of Federal Regulations.  Section 226.008.2(1) transferred “all powers, 
duties and functions relating to intrastate and interstate transportation previously performed by . . . [t]he division of motor carrier and railroad safety” to the MHTC.  Those “powers, duties, and functions” include the authority to enforce certain federal regulations granted in §§ 390.201
  and 622.550,
 which identically provided:

Subject to any exceptions which are applicable under section 307.400, RSMo, or subsection 6 of section 390.063, RSMo, the officers and commercial motor vehicle inspectors of the state highway patrol, the enforcement personnel of the division of motor carrier and railroad safety, and other authorized peace officers of this state and any civil subdivision of this state, may enforce any of the provisions of Parts 350 through 399 of Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations, as those regulations have been and may periodically be amended, as they apply to motor vehicles and drivers operating in interstate or intrastate commerce within this state; except that the enforcement personnel of the division of motor carrier and railroad safety shall be authorized to enforce those regulations only within the terminals of motor carriers and private carriers by motor vehicle.
(Emphasis added.)


In addition, § 390.041(5)
 vested the division of motor carrier and railroad safety with the authority to “[t]o enforce wholly within terminals the rules and regulations promulgated by the director of the department of public safety under section 307.400, RSMo, as they apply to motor vehicles.”  Pursuant to § 307.400, the Director promulgated Regulation 11 CSR 30-6.010, which provides:

(1) Commercial motor vehicles and trailers, in addition to all requirements of state law and consistent with section 307.400, RSMo (1986), shall be operated and equipped in compliance with the requirements for drivers and vehicles established in 49 CFR 390-397 and 49 CFR 100-199.
Therefore, the MHTC has jurisdiction to file the instant complaint to establish Spight’s alleged violations of the federal regulations.  Sections 226.008.4 and 621.040 give us the jurisdiction to hear a complaint with allegations of this nature.    
Merits of the Complaint
Section 622.350 provides:

In all trials, actions, suits and proceedings arising under the provisions of this chapter or growing out of the exercise of the authority and powers granted in this chapter to the state highways and transportation commission, the burden of proof shall be upon state highways and transportation commission.  The state highways and transportation commission shall show by clear and satisfactory evidence that the determination, requirement, direction or order of the state highways and transportation commission is reasonable or lawful as the case may be.
Count I

The MHTC alleges:


11.  On or about April 13, 2005, Respondent violated 49 CFR § 382.115(a) in that it authorized James McKay, Respondent’s employee, to operate a commercial motor vehicle before Respondent had implemented an alcohol and/or controlled substances testing program as required by 49 CFR Parts 40 and 382.

Part 382 of Title 49 CFR establishes the employer’s duty to implement an alcohol or controlled substance testing program while Part 40 sets forth specific procedures and forms to be used in the program.  Regulation 49 CFR § 382.107 defines “commercial motor vehicle,” “employer,” and “safety sensitive function” as:

Commercial motor vehicle means a motor vehicle or combination of motor vehicles used in commerce to transport passengers or property if the vehicle--

(1) Has a gross combination weight rating of 11,794 or more kilograms (26,001 or more pounds) inclusive of a towed unit with a gross vehicle weight rating of more than 4,536 kilograms (10,000 pounds)[.]
*   *   *

Employer means a person or entity employing one or more employees (including an individual who is self-employed) that is subject to DOT agency regulations requiring compliance with this part.  The term, as used in this part, means the entity responsible for overall implementation of DOT drug and alcohol program requirements, including individuals employed by the entity who take personnel actions resulting from violations of this part and any applicable DOT agency regulations.  Service agents are not employers for the purposes of this part.

*   *   *

Safety-sensitive function means all time from the time a driver begins to work or is required to be in readiness to work until the time he/she is relieved from work and all responsibility for performing work. Safety-sensitive functions shall include:
*   *   *
(3) All time spent at the driving controls of a commercial motor vehicle in operation[.]
The MHTC’s evidence shows that Spight comes within the definition of employer; that Truck 878 falls within the definition of commercial motor vehicle; and that James McKay’s operation of the vehicle falls within the definition of safety-sensitive function.

Regulation 49 CFR § 382.115 provides:

(a) All domestic-domiciled employers must implement the requirements of this part on the date the employer begins commercial motor vehicle operations.
Regulation 49 CFR § 382.301 provides:

(a) Prior to the first time a driver performs safety-sensitive functions for an employer, the driver shall undergo testing for controlled substances as a condition prior to being used, unless the employer uses the exception in paragraph (b) of this section.  No employer shall allow a driver, who the employer intends to hire or use, to perform safety-sensitive functions unless the employer has received a controlled substances test result from the MRO or C/TPA indicating a verified negative test result for that driver.
Regulation 49 CFR § 382.305 provides:

(a) Every employer shall comply with the requirements of this section. Every driver shall submit to random alcohol and controlled substance testing as required in this section.
These regulations required Spight to implement an alcohol or controlled substances testing program before permitting its employees to drive commercial motor vehicles.  Spight admitted to the MHTC inspector that it had failed to implement such a testing program before it authorized its employee, James McKay, to operate Truck 878 on April 13, 2005.
  Spight offered no evidence to the contrary at the hearing.
We conclude that Spight violated Regulation 49 CFR § 382.115(a).
Count II

The MHTC alleges:


13.  On or about the dates below, Respondent violated 49 CFR §396.11(a) and §307.400, RSMo, in that it authorized the following employees on the following dates to operate a commercial motor vehicle without requiring the driver to prepare a driver vehicle inspection report:
(a)
Ray “Tony” Spight, March 29, 2005; and,

(b)
James McKay, April 12, 2005.

Regulation 49 CFR § 396.11(a) provides:
(a) Report required.  Every motor carrier shall require its drivers to report, and every driver shall prepare a report in writing at the completion of each day’s work on each vehicle operated and the report shall cover at least the following parts and accessories:
--Service brakes including trailer brake connections
--Parking (hand) brake
--Steering mechanism
--Lighting devices and reflectors
--Tires
--Horn
--Windshield wipers
--Rear vision mirrors
--Coupling devices
--Wheels and rims
--Emergency equipment
Regulation 49 CFR § 390.5 defines a motor carrier as:

a for-hire motor carrier or a private motor carrier.  The term includes a motor carrier's agents, officers and representatives as well as employees responsible for hiring, supervising, training, assigning, or dispatching of drivers and employees concerned with the installation, inspection, and maintenance of motor vehicle equipment and/or accessories.  For purposes of subchapter B, this definition includes the terms employer, and exempt motor carrier.

Spight is a motor carrier under this definition.  Therefore, Spight was required to comply with Regulation 49 CFR § 396.11(a).  Spight admitted to the MHTC inspector that it violated this regulation by failing to require drivers Ray Spight and James McKay to prepare driver vehicle inspection reports for Ray Spight’s trip on March 29, 2005, and James McKay’s on 
April 12, 2005.
  Spight offered no evidence to the contrary at the hearing.

We conclude that Spight violated Regulation 49 CFR § 396.11(a).  A violation of 49 CFR § 396.11(a) constitutes a violation of Regulation 11 CSR 30-6.010(1) and thereby a violation of § 307.400.  
Count III


The MHTC alleges:

15.  On or about the dates below, Respondent violated 49 CFR §396.17 and §307.400, RSMo, in that it authorized the following employees on the following dates to operate a commercial motor vehicle when the commercial motor vehicle had not been periodically inspected:

(a)
Ray “Tony” Spight, March 29, 2005; and,

(b)
James McKay, April 12, 2005.
Regulation 49 CFR § 396.17 provides:

(a) Every commercial motor vehicle shall be inspected as required by this section.  The inspection shall include, at a minimum, the parts and accessories set forth in Appendix G of this subchapter.
*   *   *

(b) Except as provided in § 396.23, a motor carrier shall inspect or cause to be inspected all motor vehicles subject to its control.
(c) A motor carrier shall not use a commercial motor vehicle unless each component identified in appendix G has passed an inspection in accordance with the terms of this section at least once during the preceding 12 months and documentation of such inspection is on the vehicle. . . .
Regulation 49 CFR § 390.5 provides the applicable definitions:

Commercial motor vehicle means any self-propelled or towed motor vehicle used on a highway in interstate commerce to transport passengers or property when the vehicle--

(1) Has a gross vehicle weight rating or gross combination weight rating, or gross vehicle weight or gross combination weight, of 4,536 kg (10,001 pounds) or more, whichever is greater[.]
*   *   *

Motor carrier means a for-hire motor carrier or a private motor carrier.  The term includes a motor carrier’s agents, officers and representatives as well as employees responsible for hiring, 
supervising, training, assigning, or dispatching of drivers and employees concerned with the installation, inspection, and maintenance of motor vehicle equipment and/or accessories.  For purposes of subchapter B, this definition includes the terms employer, and exempt motor carrier.
Spight comes within the definition of motor carrier.  Spight’s Trucks 878 and 880 are commercial motor vehicles.  Spight was required to follow Regulation 49 CFR § 396.17 as to Trucks 878 and 880.

Spight admitted to the MHTC inspector that it violated this regulation by authorizing Ray Spight to drive Truck 880 on March 29, 2005, without having had it inspected and by authorizing James McKay to drive Truck 878 on April 12, 2005, without having had it inspected.
  Spight offered no evidence to the contrary at the hearing.

We conclude that Spight violated Regulation 49 CFR § 396.17.  A violation of 49 CFR 
§ 396.17 constitutes a violation of Regulation 11 CSR 30-6.010(1) and thereby a violation of 
§ 307.400.  
Summary


Spight violated Regulation 49 CFR § 382.115(a) by authorizing its employee, James McKay, to operate Truck 878 on April 13, 2005, without Spight having implemented an alcohol and/or controlled substances testing program for its drivers.

Spight violated Regulation 49 CFR § 396.11(a) by failing to require drivers Ray Spight and James McKay to prepare driver vehicle inspection reports for Ray Spight’s trip on March 29, 2005, and James McKay’s on April 12, 2005.  A violation of 49 CFR § 396.11(a) constitutes a violation of Regulation 11 CSR 30-6.010(1) and thereby a violation of § 307.400.  


Spight violated Regulation 49 CFR § 396.17 by authorizing Ray Spight to drive Truck 880 on March 29, 2005, without having had it inspected and by authorizing James McKay to 
drive Truck 878 on April 12, 2005, without having had it inspected A violation of 49 CFR 
§ 396.17 constitutes a violation of Regulation 11 CSR 30-6.010(1) and thereby a violation of 
§ 307.400.  

SO ORDERED on August 21, 2006.



________________________________



JUNE STRIEGEL DOUGHTY  


Commissioner
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